AR

>

10.

11.

12.

TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG

JANUARY 13, 2026 — 6:00 pm

PHILLIPSBURG HOUSING AUTHORITY ENVISION CENTER COMMUNITY ROOM

535 FISHER AVENUE, PHILLIPSBURG, NJ

CALL TO ORDER
OPEN PUBLIC MEETING ACT STATEMENT

This meeting is called pursuant to the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Law. A notice of
this meeting of January 13, 2026 was sent to newspaper of record and posted on the bulletin
board in the Municipal Building and has remained continuously posted as the required notices
under the statute. In addition, a copy of this notice has been available to the public and is on file
in the office of the Municipal Clerk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
INVOCATION
ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES — December 17, 2025 Regular Session Minutes
January 1, 2026 Regular Session Minutes
BILLS LIST

MAYOR’S REPORT

PUBLIC DISCUSSION ON AGENDA ITEMS

CONFIRMATION OF MAYORAL APPOINTMENT - Professional
Municipal Prosecutor: Steven Siegel, Esq.

CONFIRMATION OF COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS

Open Space Committee
Resident — 1 year term — David DeGerolamo
Alternate — 1 year term — JP Stettner

Recreation Committee
Steel Hill Representative — John Turnbull
Renegades Representative — Tim Zagra

ORDINANCES 1st READING

02026-02 AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY CORRECTING ORDINANCE NO. 02024-26 WHICH
INCORRECTLY STATES THE NAME OF THE REDEVELOPER OF BLOCK 911, LOT 7 (75
South Main)



13.

02026-03 ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 220 ENTITLED “CITIZENS’
ADVISORY BOARD” OF THE PHILLIPSBURG TOWN CODE

02026-04 ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 463 ENTITLED
“RENT CONTROL” OF THE PHILLIPSBURG TOWN CODE

02026-05 ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 584 —
TOWING — OF THE PHILLIPSBURG TOWN CODE TO IMPOSE AN OBLIGATION ONTO
THE TOWING COMPANIES PERFORMING WRECKING, TOWING, STORAGE AND
MINIMAL OR MINOR EMERGENCY REPAIR SERVICES TO THE TOWN TO COMPLY
WITH THE RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE PREDATORY TOWING PREVENTION
ACT

RESOLUTIONS ** CONSENT AGENDA **

Matters listed on the Consent Agenda Resolutions are considered routine and will be enacted by one
motion of the Council and one roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
Council member requests an item to be removed for consideration

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

R2026-20 RESOLUTION APPROVING COUNCIL ASSIGNMENTS FOR 2026

R2026-21 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH 4WARD PLANNING INC. FOR UEZ PRELIMINARY
ZONE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

R2026-22 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REFUND OF PROPERTY TAX
OVERPAYMENTS DUE TO DISABLED VETERAN EXEMPTIONS

R2026-23 RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING THE PAYOUT OF ACCRUED LEAVE
BENEFITS TO ROBERT J. MERLO

R2025-24 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL, TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG,
COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT IN
THE AMOUNT OF $5,000.00 IN THE MATTER OF CALDWELL V. TOWN OF
PHILLIPSBURG

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

MOTIONS - Firefighters application — Robert Case
PUBLIC PETITIONS

COUNCIL OPEN TIME

EXECUTIVE SESSION



20. ADJOURNMENT



Bill List Summary
REGULAR BILL LIST AS OF January 13, 2026

Check No
1 Current Fund 61,657.83
2 State & Federal Grants 4,180.00
4 Capital Fund 51,937.12
7 Sewage Utility Fund 9,337.90
8 Sewage Capital Fund 0.00
12 Planning Board Trust Fund 0.00
13 Dog Trust Fund 0.00
15 Public Defender Trust 0.00
16 Section 8 0.00
17 General Trust Fund 0.00
20 Agency Fund 0.00
21 Revolving Loan Fund 0.00
22 Affordable Housing Trust 0.00
23 Open Space Trust Fund 0.00
25 UEZ 0.00
26 Bridge Development 0.00
Pre-Paid Bill List as of January 13, 2026

1 Current Fund 0.00
2 State & Federal Grants 0.00
4 Capital Fund 0.00
7 Sewer Utility Fund 0.00
8 Sewer Utility Capital 0.00
12 Planning Board Trust Fund 0.00
16 Section 8 0.00
17 General Trust Fund 0.00
20 Agency Fund 0.00
21 Revolving Loan Fund 0.00
23 Open Space Trust Fund

25 UEZ

Grand Total All Funds 127,112.85

Approved By: }

Q/ VY

"~~~ Shannon Quick, CFO Craig Brotons, Business Administrator




Report Printed 2026-071-09 08:29:43

TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG

Page 1/2

List of Bills - CLAIMS CHECKING ACCOUNT
Meeting Date: 01/13/2026  For bills from 01/02/2026 to 01/12/2026
Check# Vendor Description Payment Check Total
4149 3 - VERIZON PO 47352 12/1/25-1/9/26 service as per billings 1,916.82 1,916.82
4150 81 - P H BARRON WELDING PO 47054 Blanket Purchase Order - Welding 275.00 275.00
4151 129 - AMERIGAS CLINTON 7510 PO 47097 Blanket Purchase Order - Propane 123.98 123.98
4152 188 - MGL FORMS SYSTEMS LLC PO 47230 envelopes 824.50
PO 47303 Sewer Bill Forms 1,087.50 1,912.00
4153 288 ~ H.T. LYONS, INC PO 46352 Blanket Purchase Order - HVAC 315.00 315.00
4154 293 - POWER PLACE INC PO 47324 Blanket Purchase Order - Parts 39.94 39.94
4155 332 - PUMPING SERVICES INC PO 47387 Pump Rental - Mercer St Manhole 4,872.00 4,872.00
4156 345 - N J FIRE EQUIPMENT PO 46884 Purchase of Adapters for Engines 63,64,6 1,170.00
PO 47025 2025 SCBA Mask Fit Testing 1,625.00
PO 47327 Purchase of SCBA Parts 96.00
PO 47328 Alterations to Turnout Pants 425.00 3,316.00
4157 346 - ST LUKE'S OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE PO 47305 Random Drug Test 130.00 130.00
4158 419 - KRISTI ANTHES PO 47361 TCCAA Meeting/Holiday Party 50.61 50.61
4159 546 - GRAPHIC ACTION INC PO 47246 Office Supplies - Envelopes 285.00 285.00
4160 687 -~ INDUSTRIAL COMMUNICATIONS INC PO 47310 Radio Maintenance Contract for December 997.98 997.98
4161 703 - FIRE LINE EQUIPMENT INC PO 47313 Service Call for Repair of 94-69 1,099.48
PO 47314 Replace Special Order Batteries in 94-6 1,420.58
PO 47316 Repair List of Items on 94-69 from Ladde 1,037.35 3,557.41
4162 753 - MISTRAS GROUP INC PO 47042 2025 Testing of Ground Ladders 1,737.60 1,737.60
4163 879 - MAYBERRY SALES & SERVICE INC PO 46621 Purchase of Replacement Portable Pump fo 569.00 569.00
4164 953 - NORTHEAST PARTS GROUP LIC PO 47126 Blanket Purchase Order - Parts 385.97 385.97
4165 965 BRT TECENOLOGIES LLC PO 47354 PD-5 Forms 56.40 56.40
4166 998 - GRIFFITH-ALLIED TRUCKING LIC PO 47055 Gasoline usage 2,326.20
PO 47055 Gasoline usage 185.06 2,511.26
4167 1041 POLLUTION CONTROL FINANCING AUTH PO 46077 Disposal Fees 16,675.177 16,675.77
4168 1053 - TRIUS, INC PO 46808 Blanket Purchase Order - Parts 810.00 810.00
4169 1060 - HORWITH TRUCKS INC PO 45181 Brakes & rotors for sanitation truck 25 136.99 136.99
4170 1073 -~ FIRE & SAFETY SERVICES LTD PO 47318 Chassis and Pump Service for 9462 2,113.52
PO 47319 Various Repairs to 9467 1,763.22
PO 47320 Pump Service on 94-67 550.00
PO 47321 Pump Service on 94-68 550.00 4,976.74
4171 1139 GOV'T FORMS & SUPPLIES LIC PO 47236 NAME PLATES FOR BERNIE FEY & JOSHUA WANI 43.58 43.58
4172 1198 - MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS PO 47353 Desktop USB Dock for V700 and V300 Body 400.00 400.00
4173 1247 - SPORTSENGINE INC PO 47306 Background checks from 11/1/2025 -~ 11/30 166.50 166.50
4174 1287 - FRANK RYMON & SONS INC PO 46559 Blanket Purchase Order - Parts 1,966.36 1,966.36
4175 1311 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PO 47223 Supplies for Court 988.11 988.11
4176 1311 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PO 47311 Purchase of Calendars 81.42 81.42
4177 1311 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PO 47340 snow brushes for the cars 141.94 141,94
4178 1311 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PO 47351 DB Equ. (MacBook & protective case, Wire 1,053.94 1,053.94
4179 1374 ~ FRED BEANS PARTS INC PO 47285 Blanket Purcase Order - Parts 521.08 521.08
4180 1401 - BAYDEE BALLESTER MONTERO PO 47338 Spanish Interpreter for Court session De 150.00 150.00
4181 1465 - KEELY REHMAN PO 47307 Administration & Facilitation of Municip 330.00 330.00
4182 1474 - CORPORATE BILLING, LILC PO 47258 Blanket Purchae Order - Parts 340.05 340.05
4183 1490 - BAWKINS DELAFIELD & WOOD LLP PO 40687 R:2023-28 COF Professional services rela 2,025.00 2,025.00
4184 1536 - CREATIVE MANAGEMENT INC PO 46079 Diesel usage 229.11
PO 46079 Diesel usage 2,216.35
PO 46079 Diesel usage 2,999.38
PO 46079 Diesel usage 114,73 5,559.57
4185 1556 - HOLLAND TOWNSEIP PO 47416 Payment for Thirty Party OT Police cover 2,975.95 2,975.95
4186 1573 - BEAS WATER COFFEE PAPER PO 46274 Water Rental-Blanket 72.86 72.86
4187 1576 ~ RUTH J MULLIGAN PO 47339 Court Assistance for the Month of Decemb 645.00 645.00
4188 1610 - CIOCA FORD LINCOLN OF FLEMINGTON PO 47139 Purchase of 2026 Ford Escape 29,129.55 29,129.55
4189 1631 - ALEX IBARRA PO 47288 Administration/Event/Placemaking Invoice 3,850.00 3,850.00
4190 1634 - A & K EQUIPMENT CO INC PO 47325 Blanket Purchase Order - Parts 1,520.64 1,520.64
4191 1685 ~ ZERO9 HOLSTERS PO 47125 Body worn camera mounts that are compati 2,092.70 2,092.70
4192 1743 - JERSEY TACTICAL CORP PO 46723 Rifles 15,599.92 15,599.92
4193 1780 - CODY CRUTS PO 47301 2025 Eyecare reimbursement 300.00 300.00
4194 1797 - SERVICE TIRE TRUCK CENTER PO 46980 Blanket Purchase Order - Tires 282.44
: PO 47132 Blanket Purchase Order - Tires 599.16
PO 47266 Blanket Purchase Order - Tires 715.20 1,596.80
4195 1802 - PHILLIPSBURG MUNICIPAL COURT PO 47358 Credit Card Fees Months of Oct and Novem 416.51 416.51
4196 1967 - JEM COMMUNICATIONS INC PO 44973 Lettering for new garbage truck 35.00 35.00
4197 2007 - ATLANTIC SALT INC PO 47284 Blanket Purchase Order - Salt 3,681.85 3,681.85
4198 3089 -~ SUNSHINE TREE & LANDSCAPE PO 47329 Repair of K-12 Saw 44.50 44.50
4199 6646 ~ VISUAL COMPUTER SOLUTIONS INC PO 46969 VCS SaaS - Renewal Services 48 for term 5,683.20 5,683.20
4200 9387 - SAMS CLUB/SYNCHRONY BANK PO 47127 Blanket Purchase Order - Supplies 49.35 49.35
TOTAL 127,112.85



Page 2/2
Report Printed 2026-01-09 08:29:43 TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG

List of Bills - CLAIMS CHECKING ACCOUNT
Meeting Date: 01/13/2026  For bills from 01/02/2026 to 01/12/2026

Check# Vendor Description Payment Check Total

Summary By Account

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CURRENT YR APPROP. YEAR NON-BUDGETARY CREDIT
01-203-20-100-050 (2025) Business Administrator - O/E 122.21
01-203-20-120-050 (2025) Municipal Clerk - O/E 43,58
01-203-20-130-050 (2025) Financial Adminstration - O/E 285.00
01-203-20-145-050 {2025) Revenue Adminstration - O/E 56.40
01-203-23-220-050 (2025) Employee Group Insurance 300.00
01-203-25~240-050 (2025) Police Department - O/E 7,378.07
01-203~25-265-050 (2025) Fire Department - O/E 13,042.66
01-203~26-290~050 (2025) Street & Roads - O/E 3,716.85
01-203-26-300-050 (2025) Public Works Adminstration - O/E 130.00
01-203-26-310-050 (2025) Building & Grounds - O/E 315.00
01-203-26-315-050 (2025) Vehicle Maintenance - O/E 7,592.83
01-203-28-370-050 (2025) Recreation Service & Program - O/E 166.50
01-203-31-446~050 (2025) Utility Expenses - Natural Gas . 123.98
01-203-31-460-050 (2025) Bulk Purchases - Gasoline 7,541.93
01-203-32-465-050 {2025) Landfill/Solid Waste Disposal Costs 15,971.16
01-203-33-490~050 (2025) Municipal Court -~ O/E ) 2,250.23
01-203~47-390-050 (2025) Maintenance of Free Public Library 1,916.82
01-203-47-396-050 (2025) Recycling Tax (P.L. 2007, C. 311) 704.61
01-260-05-102 Current Fund - Due to Claims 0.00 61,657.83
TOTALS FOR CURRENT FUND 0.00 61,657.83 0.00 61,657.83
02-213-41-506-000 Public Safety - State Grants 330.00
02-213~41-690-000 Other State Grants - NPP 3,850.00
02~260~05-102 St/Fed Grants - Due to Claims Fund 0.00 4,180.00
TOTALS FOR STATE & FEDERAL GRANTS 4,180.00 0.00 0.00 4,180.00
04-215-55-941-000 2021 Improvements Authorized 2,092.70
04-215-55-946-000 NJDOT Improvement Authorization 2,975.95
04-215-55-947-000 02024~15 Improvement Authorizations 29,698.55
04~215-55-948-000 02025-10 Improvement Authorizations 17,169.92
04~260-05~102 Capital - Due to Claims Fund 0.00 51,937.12
TOTALS FOR CAPITAL FUND 0.00 0.00 51,937.12 51,937.12
07-203-55-510-050 (2025) Sewer Utility OE 7,312.90
07-204-55-000 Accounts Payable 2,025.00
07-260-05-102 Sewer Utility - Due to Claims Fund 0.00 9,337.90
TOTALS FOR SEWER UTILITY 0.00 7,312.90 2,025.00 9,337.90
Total to be paid from Fund 01 CURRENT FUND 61,657.83
Total to be paid from Fund 02 STATE & FEDERAL GRANTS 4,180.00
Total to be paid from Fund 04 CAPITAL FUND 51,937.12
Total to be paid from Fund 07 SEWER UTILITY 9,337.90

127,112.85



ORDINANCE 2026-02
TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG
WARREN COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN, NEW
JERSEY CORRECTING ORDINANCE NO. 02024-26 WHICH INCORRECTLY
STATES THE NAME OF THE REDEVELOPER OF BLOCK 911, LOT 7 (75 South
Main)

WHEREAS, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 02024-26 at their October 9, 2024
meeting (the “Ordinance”), which designated 75 South Main, Block 911, Lot 7 as an area in need
of redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, the Ordinance incorrectly identified the designated redeveloper as “75 SM
Urban Renewal Limited Liability Company”; and

WHEREAS, the Financial Agreement and the Redevelopment Agreement entered into by
the Town and the designated redeveloper (the “Redevelopment Documents”) following approval
of the Ordinance all incorrectly identify the designated redeveloper as “75 SM Urban Renewal
Limited Liability Company”; and

WHEREAS, the designated redeveloper, which is correctly identified as “75 SM MGT
Urban Renewal LLC”, and the Town Council wish to amend the typographical errors in the
designated redeveloper’s name in the Redevelopment Documents; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Town Council and 75 SM MGT Urban Renewal
LLC to correct the typographical error in the Redevelopment Documents;

WHEREAS, such change is administrative in nature and does not require a new ordinance;
and

WHEREAS, at the time the Redevelopment Documents were adopted title to the subject
property was held by 430 William St LLC and Stetson Holdings RSBRM LLC as tenants in
common; and

WHEREAS, 430 William St LLC and Stetson Holdings RSBRM LLC are transferring
title to 75 SM MGT Urban Renewal LLC, which does not affect the validity of the Redevelopment

Documents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of
Phillipsburg as follows:

Section 1. The recitals hereto are hereby incorporated herein as if set forth at length.

Section 2. Counsel for the Town of Phillipsburg is hereby authorized to take all actions
and to prepare any and all documents necessary to effectuate this Ordinance on behalf of the Town

{00971144-1}



Council, including the preparation of slip pages to the Redevelopment Documents so that the
correction to the designated redeveloper’s name is made.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect upon publication in accordance with law.

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced to pass on first
reading at a regular meeting of the Council of the Town of Phillipsburg held on January 13, 2026,
and ordered published in accordance with the law. Said Ordinance will be considered for final
reading and adoption at a regular meeting of the Town Council to be held on January 27, 2026, at
6:00 PM or as soon thereafter as the Town Council may hear this Ordinance at the Envision Center
Community Room, 535 Fisher Avenue, Phillipsburg, New Jersey, at which time all persons
interested may appear and speak for or against the passage of said Ordinance.

CERTIFICATION

I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk for the Town of Phillipsburg, do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the Town Council at their
meeting.

Susan Turner
Acting Municipal Clerk

{00971144-1}



ORDINANCE NO. 2026-03

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY WARREN, STATE OF
NEW JERSEY REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 220 ENTITLED
“CITIZENS’ ADVISORY BOARD” OF THE PHILLIPSBURG TOWN CODE

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Phillipsburg, County of Warren, State of
New Jersey, via Ordinance No. 2025-16, created Chapter 220 entitled “Citizens’ Advisory Board;”
and

WHEREAS, the Town Council now wishes to repeal the Ordinance that created Chapter
220, as the Council now believes that the creation of a Citizens’ Advisory Board is not in the best
interest of the Town and its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of
Phillipsburg, County of Warren, State of New Jersey that Chapter 220 — Citizens’ Advisory Board
— created via Ordinance No. 2025-16, is hereby repealed and deleted in its entirety.

SECTION I: Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect upon final passage and publication as provided by law.
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced to pass on first
reading at a regular meeting of the Council of the Town of Phillipsburg held on January 13, 2026,
and ordered published in accordance with the law. Said Ordinance will be considered for final
reading and adoption at a regular meeting of the Town Council to be held on January 27, 2026, at
6:00 PM or as soon thereafter as the Town Council may hear this Ordinance at the Envision Center
Community Room, 535 Fisher Avenue, Phillipsburg, New Jersey, at which time all persons
interested may appear and speak for or against the passage of said Ordinance.

CERTIFICATION

I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk for the Town of Phillipsburg, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the Town Council at their
meeting.

Susan Turner
Acting Municipal Clerk

{00971204-1}



ORDINANCE NO. 2026-04

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 463 ENTITLED “RENT
CONTROL” OF THE PHILLIPSBURG TOWN CODE

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Phillipsburg, County of Warren, State of
New Jersey — via Ordinance No. 2024-31 — created Chapter 463 of the Town Code entitled “Rent
Control;” and

WHEREAS, the Town Council now wishes to repeal the Ordinance that created Chapter
463, as the Council now believes that the creation of a Rent Control Board is not in the best interest
of the Town and its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of
Phillipsburg, County of Warren, State of New Jersey that Chapter 463 — Rent Control — created via
Ordinance No. 2024-31, is hereby repealed and deleted in its entirety.

SECTION I: Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect upon final passage and publication as provided by law.
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced to pass on first reading at
a regular meeting of the Council of the Town of Phillipsburg held on January 13, 2026, and ordered
published in accordance with the law. Said Ordinance will be considered for final reading and
adoption at a regular meeting of the Town Council to be held on January 27, 2026, at 6:00 PM or
as soon thereafter as the Town Council may hear this Ordinance at the Envision Center Community
Room, 535 Fisher Avenue, Phillipsburg, New Jersey, at which time all persons interested may
appear and speak for or against the passage of said Ordinance.

CERTIFICATION

I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk for the Town of Phillipsburg, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the Town Council at their
meeting.

Susan Turner
Acting Municipal Clerk

{00971195-1}



ORDINANCE NO. 2026-05

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY, AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 584 - TOWING -
OF THE PHILLIPSBURG TOWN CODE TO IMPOSE AN OBLIGATION ONTO THE
TOWING COMPANIES PERFORMING WRECKING, TOWING, STORAGE AND
MINIMAL OR MINOR EMERGENCY REPAIR SERVICES TO THE TOWN TO
COMPLY WITH THE RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE PREDATORY TOWING
PREVENTION ACT

WHEREAS, the State of New Jersey enacted the Predatory Towing Prevention Act to
prevent consumers whose vehicles are parked on public streets and/or private property from having
their vehicles towed by unscrupulous towers engaged in predatory practices; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Phillipsburg adopted Chapter 584, entitled “Towing,” on
February 15, 1994, via Ordinance No. 94-5; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to amend Chapter 584 to impose an obligation onto
towing companies performing wrecking, towing, storage and minimal or minor emergency repair
services to the town to comply with the relevant provisions of the Predatory Towing Prevention
Act; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that such amendment is in the best interest of the
Town and its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of
Phillipsburg, County of Warren, State of New Jersey that Chapter 584 — Towing — is hereby
amended and supplemented to impose an obligation onto towing companies performing wrecking,
towing, storage and minimal or minor emergency repair services to the town to comply with the
relevant provisions of the Predatory Towing Prevention Act, as follows:

SECTION I:
Additions to this Section shall be delineated by underlined text, thusly.
§ 584-5. Classification Standards For Towers; Equipment Requirements.
The following minimum standards must be met for each class of towers:
A [

All towers shall be subject to the provisions of the Predatory Towing Prevention Act. Failure to

abide by the provisions of the Act may result in revocation of the Tower’s approvals issued under
this Chapter, in accordance with Section 584-7.

{00971207-1}



SECTION II: Severability.

The various parts, sections and clauses of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If
any part, sentence, paragraph, section or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court
of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby.

SECTION I II: Repealer.

Any ordinance or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed
as to their inconsistencies only.

SECTION 1V: Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect upon final passage and publication as provided by law.
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced to pass on first reading at
a regular meeting of the Council of the Town of Phillipsburg held on January 13,2026, and ordered
published in accordance with the law. Said Ordinance will be considered for final reading and
adoption at a regular meeting of the Town Council to be held on January 27, 2026, at 6:00 PM or
as soon thereafter as the Town Council may hear this Ordinance at the Envision Center Community
Room, 535 Fisher Avenue, Phillipsburg, New Jersey, at which time all persons interested may
appear and speak for or against the passage of said Ordinance.

CERTIFICATION

I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk for the Town of Phillipsburg, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the Town Council at their meeting.

Susan Turner
Acting Municipal Clerk

{00971207-1}



R2026-20
RESOLUTION APPROVING COUNCIL ASSIGNMENTS FOR 2026

BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council that the following Council appointments for 2026 are

hereby approved:

Board of Education Senior Center

Councilman Wanisko Councilman Fey

Lehigh Valley Chamber of Commerce Transportation

Council Vice President Clark Councilman Saultz
NORWESCAP Urban Enterprise Zone (UEZ)
Council Vice President Clark Council President Kennedy
Open Space

Council Vice President Clark
Planning Board/ Land Use Board

Council President Kennedy

Recreation Advisory

Councilman Fey

Sewer Utility Advisory Council

Council President Kennedy
Council Vice President Clark
Councilman Fey
Councilman Saultz
Councilwoman Wanisko

CERTIFICATION

I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk for the Town of Phillipsburg, do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the Town Council at their January 13,
2026 meeting.

Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk



R2026-21

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH 4WARD
PLANNING INC. FOR UEZ PRELIMINARY ZONE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Town of Phillipsburg UEZ Program has received approval to proceed with development of a
Preliminary Zone Development Plan not to exceed the amount of $125,000; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.L.S.A. 40A:11-5(1)(a)(i), a contract for such services may be awarded without
competitive bidding by reason that such services constitute “professional services” which are services
rendered or performed by a person authorized by law to practice a recognized profession, whose practice
is regulated by law and the performance of which services requires knowledge of an advanced type in a
field of learning acquired by a prolonged formal course of specialized instruction and study as
distinguished from general academic instruction or apprenticeship; and

WHEREAS, 4Ward Planning, Inc. submitted a proposal dated December 17, 2025, to provide the
aforementioned services; and

WHEREAS, the value of these services will be $86,900 pursuant to the December 17t proposal; and

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Urban Enterprise Zone Authority has advised the Town of the necessity of
expedient production of the Development Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it to be in the best interest of the Town of Phillipsburg to authorize said
work, which is not subject to public bidding;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council, Town of Phillipsburg, County of Warren, State
of New Jersey that the Mayor and UEZ Coordinator are authorized to enter into a Contract with 4Ward
Planning, Inc. as described therein, subject to the certification of funds, not to exceed $86,900 without
further authorization from the Council.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to cause a notice to be
published in the manner provided by law setting forth the nature, duration, service and amount of the
Contract and that the resolution and Contract are on file in the Office of the Clerk and are available for
public inspection.

CERTIFICATION

I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk of the Town of Phillipsburg, County of Warren and State of New
Jersey do hereby certify the foregoing to be true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by Council at a
meeting held on January 13, 2026.

Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

) December
This Agreement, made on thisl7thday of @ateben, 2025, by and between the Town of

Phillipsburg, hereinafter referred to as the "Client" and 4ward Planning, Inc. hereinafter referred

to as the "Consultant".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Client- requires professional consultant services, and,;

WHEREAS, the Consultant represents that it has the requisite experience to perform said

services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Client and the Consultant, for considerations, hereinafter, set forth
agree as follows:

1.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4ward Planning Inc.

Work shall comply with the scope of work and schedule as noted in
Attachment A.

The cost for services provided are as set forth in Attachment A and shall
constitute the entire basis for payment for the work specified, including all
incidental work, all labor, materials, equipment, and all other costs necessary to
fulfill the requisites of this service.

Client Provided Services

The Client shall make available to the Consultant, without cost, copies of all
maps, plans, reports and other data related to the project, in possession of the
Client.

Miscellaneous Requirements

The Consultant shall be responsible for the work and its presentation to the Client
and others.

The Consultant shall be required to attend meetings and give reports to the Client,
or others, at the place and time mutually agreed to by the Consultant and Client.

The Consultant covenants and agrees that Consultant will perform services under
this contract in accordance with the standards and practices of its profession.

1 Phillipsburg UEZ Five-Year Strategic Plan


Todd Poole

Todd Poole
December


4.5 Should the Consultant require the services of a sub-consultant, at any time during
the term of this contract, their names and qualifications shall be submitted to the
Client for approval. Consultant will remain responsible for compensating sub-
consultant or sub-consultants, as per its agreements with these third parties.

4.6 Should the Consultant encounter difficulties beyond their control that may delay
the completion of the project, or any part thereof, the Client will be notified in
writing, as soon as practical. This notification shall document the specific reasons
for the delay and any attempts the Consultant has made to overcome such delays.

5. Fee and Payment

The cost for services provided for in this project are set forth in Attachment A and shall
constitute the entire basis for payment for the work specified, including all incidental work,
all labor, materials, equipment, studies, preparing the report, outside services, reviewing
existing data, meetings, transportation, overhead, clerical personnel, and any and all other
costs necessary to fulfill the requirements of this service. The Consultant has provided a
breakdown of the lump sum cost which includes all items of work and incidental activities,
so partial payments for completed elements of the work may be provided. Billing will be
made monthly in accordance with the percentage of work completed, subject to the
approval of the Client. Payment will be made not more than thirty (30) days after receipt of
the approved invoice. Client is to inform Consultant what date all invoices that include
task work by Consultant are submitted to Prime Client so it is known when to expect
forthcoming payments. It is understood and agreed to by the Client that payment from the
Project’s Prime Client (i.e. Person or persons receiving the work deliverable) to the Client
for work performed by the Consultant is not a precedent for payment to Consultant from
the Client.

6. Change Order

The Client is to be notified, in writing, for any requests of time extension, compensation
for proposed additional work, etc. Such requests will be reviewed by the Client, and if it
is in the best interest of the Client, and the Client then approves such request, a Change
Order will be issued by the Client. Unless there are unforeseen conditions, the Agreement
fee will not be increased.

Likewise, should the Client seek a Change Order to the Agreement, Client shall
notify Consultant in writing of same and provided that Client and Consultant can
come to terms on the Change Order, Consultant will amend the Agreement to
reflect the requested Change Order.

4ward Planning Inc. 57 Phillipsburg UEZ Five-Year Strategic Plan



Indemnification

To the extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall always indemnify and

save harmless the Client and its officers, agents, and employees on account of
any claims, damages, losses, litigation, expenses, counsel fees, and
compensation arising out of any claims, damages, personal injuries, property
losses and/or economic damages sustained by or alleged to have been sustained
by any person or entity, to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or
omissions of the Consultant, its agents, employees, or subcontractors in
connection with the Project, and/or under this Agreement.

Insurance

The Consultant shall provide and maintain a Certificate of Insurance indicating
proof of Professional Liability (and/or Errors and Omissions Coverage), Loss
of Valuable Papers and other required insurance as noted below and is hereby
made a part of this Agreement.

All insurance coverage shall be provided by the Consultant at no expense to
the Client. The scope and limits of insurance coverage specified are the
minimum requirements and shall in no way limit or exclude the Client from
additional limits and coverages provided under the Consultant's policies.

The Consultant shall be responsible for maintaining the stated insurance
coverage in force for the life of the contract with insurance carriers licensed
and authorized to underwrite such insurance in the State of New Jersey

The type and limits of insurance coverage shall not be less than the type and
limits designated herein, and the Consultant agrees that the coverage or the
acceptance by the Client of certificates of insurance indicating the type and limits
of insurance shall in no way limit the liability of the Consultant to any such type
and limits of insurance coverage.

The insurance coverage hereinafter afforded by the Consultant shall be
primary insurance, except when stated to apply in excess or contingent upon
the absence of other insurance. The amount and type of insurance shall not
be reduced by the existence of other insurance held by the Client.

4ward Planning Inc. 3 Phillipsburg UEZ Five-Year Strategic Plan



e
A

1

o

Insurance Requirements:

The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the life of the contract
$300,000.00 BI/PD combined single limit COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY COVERAGE, written on an occurrence basis and minimally
arranged to include the following coverage:

I.  Premises/Operations
II.  Products - Completed operations
III.  Contractual liability

IV. Independent contractors

The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the life of the contract
$300,000.00 BI/PD combined single limit BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE
LIABILITY COVERAGE, written on an occurrence basis and minimally
arranged to include the following coverage:

I.  Non-owned automobile

I.  Consultant's Liability and Physical damage
IlI. Any Consultant's automobile

IV. All Consultants' scheduled automobiles

The Consultant maintain for the life of the contract, State of
Statutory WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S
LIABILITY COVERAGE, designed to indemnify all the Consultant's
employees in the event of occupational injury and/or disease.

The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the life of the contract
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY, MALPRACTICE, OR ERRORS AND
OMISSION COVERAGE protecting the Consultant against wrongful acts
and liability arising from professional services. A $1,000,000.00 single limit
per claim and a $1,000,000.00 aggregate per policy period shall be afforded
by this coverage. The coverage shall be written on an occurrence form or
may be written on a claims made basis.

Designation of Gender

All words used herein in the singular shall extend to and include the plural. All
words used in the plural number shall extend to and include the singular. All
words used in any gender shall extend to and include all genders.

4ward Planning Inc.

4 Phillipsburg UEZ Five-Year Strategic Plan



B DR P
Liprep———]

5
:D‘_A‘. 3
Oe=ir
O

oy

10.

11.

12.

13.

4ward Planning Inc.

Termination

The Client or the Consultant shall have the right, without cause, to terminate this
Agreement within Thirty (30) days following written notification to the other party
to that effect, by Certified Mail or Personal delivery by agent, and upon the
expiration of said thirty-day period, this Agreement shall be null and void and all
rights established herein shall end and terminate, It shall not be necessary for either
party to state a reason for such termination. If this Agreement is terminated, the
Consultant shall be paid for the services performed to the termination notice date,
including reimbursable expenses then due as mutually determined between the
Client and the Consultant.

Standard of Care

The Consultant will perform the services described in this Agreement and in any
work release documents, or Change Orders, which are issued under this
Agreement and signed by both parties. In performing the services, the Consultant
will exercise the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by reputable
companies performing the same or similar services. The Consultant will not have
any obligation to perform services not expressly described in this Agreement or in
work release documents or Change Orders signed by the Consultant.

Applicable Laws
This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and construed under and in
accordance with the laws of the State of New Jersey.

Entire Agreement

The terms and provisions herein contained constitute the entire Agreement
between the parties and shall supersede all previous communications,
representations, or agreements, either oral or written, between the parties hereto
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no agreement or understanding
varying or extending the same shall be binding upon either party hereto unless
in writing signed by both parties hereto, and nothing contained in the terms or
provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as an Agreement by the
Consultant to directly obligate the Consultant to creditors or employees of the
Client.

5 Phillipsburg UEZ Five-Year Strategic Plan



Town of Phillipsburg

AZ; 1 U/\/Lf‘ );2{?23;? Jm/\

Authorized Officer/Representative (Print)

7 A

Sisnduee

12/16 /25~

Date / [/

4ward Planning Inc.

Todd J. Poole

Authorized Officer/Representative (Print)
J—

Signature

December 18, 2025

Date

4ward Planning Inc.

Phillipsburg UEZ Five-Year Strategic Plan



Award Planning nc.
ATTACHMENT A 325 Chestnut Street

Suite 80O

Philadelphia, PA 19106

267.480.7133 0

866.989.0021F

é[%/@\jﬁq% Is Your Land-Use Strategy “4ward Tested”?™

November 1, 2024

Craig R. Brotons
Municipal Manager
Town of Phillipsburg
120 Filmore Street
Phillipsburg, NJ 08865

Dear Mr. Brotons:

4ward Planning is pleased to submit its proposal pursuant to the town of Phillipsburg’s need for creating
a UEZ five-year strategic plan. As you are aware, based on our experience with the town, we are a land-
use economics consulting practice with considerable expertise in performing real estate and economic
analysis on behalf of public and private sector clients throughout the northeast and Midwestern U.S.

Importantly, prior to working as a private sector consultant, | worked for more than 12 years as a public
sector executive in New Jersey, focused on economic and community development. In January of 1996,
Lakewood Township hired me to oversee the nascent UEZ program and to be the executive director of
the Lakewood Industrial Commission. | would subsequently create the Lakewood Development
Corporation (LDC), as well as many of the programs (including loan programs) which continue to operate.

During my tenure as the LDC Executive Director and Lakewood Industrial Park Executive Director, | putin
place many management systems, policies and programs which led to increased private investment and
job creation (including the JobLink program and associated shuttle bus service). | was chiefly responsible
for the recruitment of the Blinds-to-Go U.S. headquarters and manufacturing facility, All Chemical Inc.,
and RubberCycle, among other firms locating to or expanding within the industrial park. | also
administered the UEZ loan program which was responsible for impacting job creation and new
construction within the UEZ.

Further, my master’s thesis at Rutgers University explored the appropriate use of financial incentives and
measures of success for New Jersey UEZ programs — aspects which are germane to this study. My 32 years
working as both a public sector executive in New Jersey and private sector consultant in economic and
community development affords me an advantage over other consultants in this field; | will leverage my
expertise and experience on behalf of this project.

Economic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Outcomes™
NEW YORK PHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www. LandUselmpacts.com



I trust you will find our credentials and proposed scope of services ideally suited to your strategic planning
needs.

Kind regards,

a_—

Todd J. Poole
President & Managing Principal

Economic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Outcomes™
NEW YORK PHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www.LandUselmpacts,.com



A
a8

PProacn for Major Task

Phase |
Urban Enterprise Zone (UEZ) Profile

A profile of the Urban Enterprise Zone (UEZ) district will be developed to include a breakdown of
businesses by industry, estimated total employment and employment by industry, share of businesses
within the UEZ district which are certified to participate in the Phillipsburg UEZ program, and the
commercial and industrial ratable value (assumes 95 percent or more of Phillipsburg’s commercial and
industrial real properties fall within the UEZ boundaries). This profile will also serve as a baseline for future
Phillipsburg UEZ profiles, allowing municipal staff to evaluate how industry conditions within the UEZ
district have evolved over a given period (e.g., five years).

Task Deliverables

*  Summary narrative and key findings
Methodologies employed
Supporting tables and graphs, as appropriate

Market Analysis

We will perform a market analysis for the city of Phillipsburg, a 20-minute drive contour representing the
primary market area (PMA) (comprising approximately two thirds or more of the demand generated for
Phillipsburg UEZ goods and services) and, for purposes of comparison, the Allentown-Bethlehem MSA.
The socio-economic trends analysis will examine metrics for population, households, real estate, and labor
and industry. Socio-economic trends will be measured over time (2010, 2024 (estimated), and 2029
(projected)).

Task Deliverables

*  Summary narrative, key findings, and takeaways
*  Methodologies employed
*  Supporting tables, graphs, and maps, as appropriate

Community Engagement

Stakeholder Identification: We will collaborate with the municipality to identify and involve crucial
stakeholders, including businesses, residents, business organizations, zoning and planning department
officials, community organizations, neighborhood associations, and private partners, Special emphasis will
be given to engaging minority residents and businesses to ensure their meaningful participation.

Economic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Outcomes™
NEW YORK PHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www. LandUselmpacis.com



Online Visioning Survey: 4ward Planning will host a visioning survey on an online platform to gather ideas
and aspirations from residents and businesses regarding their ideal urban environment within the UEZ.
The survey aims to capture their preferences, concerns, and suggestions on various aspects including
infrastructure and services supportive of business development they wish to see implemented within the
UEZ.

Project Web Content: We will develop and provide content to the town of Phillipsburg for posting on the
towns’s website. This will include the provision of general project information, findings, and
recommendations, with updates provided as project milestones are reached.

Focus Group Meetings and Interviews: We will conduct a series of focus group meetings and interviews to
ensure a diverse and comprehensive representation of perspectives from the range of stakeholders. We
will work with the Phillipsburg officials to identify and invite the appropriate stakeholders to each meeting,
as well as develop guided questions for discussion purposes.

Focus Group Meetings: 4ward Planning will organize up to three (3) focus group meetings to engage
directly with stakeholders with targeted interests and perspectives to better understand and address the
needs within the UEZ. At least one focus group meeting will be conducted in Phillipsburg and up to two
more will be conducting virtually using Microsoft Teams or Zoom, lasting up to ninety (90) minutes, and
accommodating a group of no more than eight (8), but not less than six (6) stakeholders. We will prepare
a brief meeting summary that highlights key themes. We propose meeting with the following groups:

o Businesses and business organizations
o Community organizations
o Neighborhood associations and residents

Interviews: To complement the focus group meetings, we will conduct up to eight (8) virtual or phone
interviews with stakeholders to delve into more specific directives and gather additional insights. Each
interview will be up to (30) minutes in duration and will accommodate up to three (3) stakeholders per
interview. We will prepare a brief summary highlighting key themes. We propose holding interviews with
stakeholders from the following groups: ‘

o Large employers
o Elected and appointed municipal officials germane to economic development

Neighborhood Business Walk-Throughs: We will conduct a field visit of the UEZ and personally meet with
businesses and key stakeholders to facilitate direct and meaningful interactions. Through these face-to-
face discussions, we aim to gain a deeper understanding of their specific needs, challenges, and
aspirations. This approach allows us to build relationships, address concerns, and tailor the strategy
development action items to suit the needs of various UEZ businesses. 4ward Planning requests at least
one Phillipsburg official assist with this task by notifying businesses in advance and accompanying 4ward
Planning on the walk-through.

Economic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Outcomes™
NEW YORK PHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www. LandUselmpacis.com



Community Engagement Report: We will compile a concise report summarizing the findings and key
themes derived from the community engagement activities. This report will include an overview of
conducted activities and the feedback received. Additionally, the report will clearly outline how the
community's input will influence the development of the strategic plan.

Presentation to Municipality and New Jersey Urban Enterprise Zone Authority: We will present the
outcomes of the planning process to the municipality and the New Jersey Urban Enterprise Zone Authority
in a clear, accessible manner.

Task Deliverables

Online visioning survey
Website content

*  Neighborhood business walk-throughs

»  Virtual interviews and focus group meetings (up to 3 focus group meetings, up to 8 interviews)
Engagement report summarizing key findings

Summary of UEZ Projects and Economic and Employment Impacts

Working with municipal staff, we will compile a list of UEZ approved projects since 2013 and segment them
into distinct categories: loans, construction, infrastructure, marketing, and labor training and recruitment.
Associated with each project will be the approved UEZ funding amount and private funding leveraged
(where applicable), and projected employment to be created. Where possible, projects and associated
funding will be further segmented by industry assisted. Data trends will be displayed in tabular and chart
format to facilitate the ease of interpretation.

Utilizing IMPLAN economic impact analysis software (a widely used economic input/output modeling
software program), we will model the direct, indirect, and induced economic impacts of the approved UEZ
projects since 2013 (Note: we will adjust the IMPLAN model’s time period to correspond with the period
in which the UEZ project was approved). The impacts identified will be focused on economic value (the
value of goods produced less retail mark-ups) and jobs created (full- and part-time) within the Phillipsburg-
Philadelphia two county area.

We will also review job creation and retention figures provided to municipal staff by private firms that have
been recipients of UEZ project funding. We will analyze the data by industry and year and evaluate the
number of jobs created and preserved against the funding amounts loaned or granted.

Task Deliverables

Summary narrative of key findings and methodologies employed
Supporting tables and graphs

Ecanomic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Qutcomes™
NEW YORK PHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www LandUselmpacis.com



Phase I
Zoning Review

We will review the Town’s zoning regulations and UEZ boundaries with the intention of identifying
amendments and zone boundary changes that should be considered to facilitate future business
investment and desirable redevelopment.

Zoning Analysis: We will conduct a comprehensive review of the existing zoning regulations and land-use
plans within the UEZ and the surrounding areas to identify potential constraints or opportunities for future
development projects and demonstrate, if applicable, how not amending a particular zoning ordinance
could limit private business investment.

Zone Boundary Review: We will evaluate and determine the most appropriate boundaries for the UEZ
based on the economic and social conditions of the area, as well as commercial and light industrial
redevelopment opportunities.

Land-Use Suitability Assessment: We will assess the suitability of different areas within the UEZ for various
types of development based on factors such as infrastructure availability, environmental considerations,
and compatibility with neighboring land uses.

Zoning Impact Assessment and Report: 4ward Planning will assess the potential impacts of proposed
zoning changes on the community, environment, and local businesses and prepare a report summarizing
the findings of the zoning review, including the proposed zone boundary changes and their potential
impacts and other zoning recommendations.

Task Deliverables

UEZ zoning impact assessment and report, inclusive of key findings

Transportation

Transportation Infrastructure Evaluation: We will conduct a comprehensive assessment of the existing
transportation infrastructure within the enterprise zone, including roads, public transit, and bicycle and
pedestrian facilities. This will include a review of any planned or proposed transportation updates within
the zone boundaries, to consider their implications for future UEZ private investment.

Connectivity Assessment: We will evaluate the accessibility and connectivity of the UEZ to adjacent
neighborhoods and the regional transportation network.

Identifying Opportunities for Transportation Infrastructure Improvements: We will identify and assess
potential opportunities for enhancing transportation infrastructure within the zone, including
recommendations for improvements in public transit service and facilities, roadway and traffic

Economic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Outcomes™
NEW YORK PHILARELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www. LandUselmpacts.com
!



enhancements, and bicycle and pedestrian facilities. These observations and recommendations will also
be influenced by the focus group and interviews earlier conducted.

Task Deliverables

Transportation infrastructure review and improvement recommendations

Phase Il
Updating the Vision, Goals, and Objectives for the Phillipsburg UEZ program

Based on the findings from the foregoing analyses, as well as stakeholder outreach, we will work with
municipal staff to update or create the vision statement for the UEZ program. This vision statement will
be cogent and reflective of the UEZ program direction the town of Phillipsburg desires.

Several iterations of the vision, goals, and objectives will be developed before being made final.
Task Deliverables

Draft and final vision statement and supporting goals and objectives

Marketing, Operation, and Implementation

An examination of current UEZ program promotional partnerships (if any) will be examined and potential
partnerships recommended, based on a review of other New Jersey UEZ program promotional
partnerships. Informal interviews with other New Jersey UEZ programs will inform the development of
best-case examples, illustrating effective promotional partnerships with private and non-profit entities,
inclusive of funding and staffing requirements.

We will review the current budget structure for Phillipsburg’s UEZ program and compare it to the budget
structure of other similarly sized UEZ programs to examine if a budgeting allocation is in order, based on
the effectiveness and efficiency of other UEZ programs.

Working with municipal staff, we will also perform a zero-based budgeting exercise to craft a new annual
UEZ budget, ensuring administrative expenses fall within the allowable thresholds set by the state of New
Jersey.

A timeline for executing a new budget structure and program controls will be developed in consultation
with municipal staff,

Recognizing that a dedicated UEZ board needs to be in place to ensure the decisions and activities of the
program need to be consistent with the mission, goals and objectives desired (whether now in place or
developed during this study), and that the Phillipsburg governing body is a less than ideal entity to serve
in this capacity, we will work with the municipal manager and the Phillipsburg UEZ coordinator to identify

Economic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Outcomes™
NEW YORK PHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www.LandUselmpacis.com



one or more board structures which are deemed beneficial to the carrying out the strategic plan. We will
survey other New Jersey UEZ programs concerning their board structures and report on this information
for this task.

Finally, and based on proven economic development benchmarks, we will develop a series of metrics by
which the town of Phillipsburg can measure the success of the UEZ program, generally, and specific
programs, in particular (e.g., the loan program; construction lending; employment training and job
placement; etc.).

Task Deliverables

s Draft and final market plan
* Recommended operational structure and five-year annual budget
Timeline for executing budget and program controls
*  Identification of program measures (Dashboard) for annual evaluation of goals and objectives
Identification of Next Steps

4ward Planning team will identify actions the town of Phillipsburg will need to take to secure all approvals
of the strategic planning document and will stand ready to make edits to the document, as may be required
by local municipal officials, NJ DCA/UEZ Authority, or other governmental entity.

Task Deliverables

Draft and final summary of narrative of action steps, responsible actors, and timelines to
accomplish action steps

Development of Final Report and Public Presentation

Upon receiving final comments from municipal officials, we will develop the final report, inclusive of all
supporting tables, graphs, photos, and maps. We will produce 10 color bound copies and one PDF for
future printing and hosting on the town of Phillipsburg’s website.

We will make a public presentation of our report, covering the purpose of the study, methods employed,
and key findings.

Task Deliverables

* 10 bound color copies of the UEZ Five-Year Strategic Plan
¢ One PDF
One public presentation of the report process and findings

Economic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Outcomes™
NEW YORK PHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www. LandUselmpacts.com
l



Project Scl

The below project schedule reflects a six-month effort and assumes there will be no undue delays in
receiving requested data and information from municipal staff, or delays in interview and focus group
sessions.

Camden UEZ Five-Year Strategic Planning Study

Proposed Project Schedule
1 2134|567 |89 |01 [12]13]1a|15]| 1617|1819/ 20212 |2

PHASE |

Task L.1. Urban Enterprise Zane (UEZ) Profile

Task1.2 Market Analysis

Task1.3 Community Engagement /)

Task 1.4 Summary of UEZ Projects and Economic & Employment Impacts _A

PHASE Il

Task2.1 Zoning Review

Task2.2 Transporatation

PHASE Il

Task3.1 Updating the Visian, Goals and Objectives of the UEZ Program

Task3.2 Marketing, Operation, and Implementation

Task3.3 Identification of Next Steps

Task3.4 Development of final Report and Public Presentation

Key

Expected Time Frame

A Task Deliverable

Economic & Real Fstate Analysis for Sustainahle Land Use Outcomes'™
NEW YORK FHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH

www. LandUselmpa




s
-
»

Project Fee

4ward Planning covers all costs in advance of payment. We will invoice monthly on a percent complete
basis and include information on work product completed during the billing cycle.

PHASE | $42,200
Task 1.1.  Urban Enterprise Zone (UEZ) Profile $5,500
Task1.2  Market Analysis $15,500
Task 1.3  Community Engagement $14,000
Task 1.4  Summary of UEZ Projects and Economic & Employment Impacts $7,200
PHASE Il $17,000
Task 2.1  Zoning Review $9,500
Task 2.2 Transportation $7,500
PHASE Il 523,500
Task3.1  Updating the Vision, Goals and Objectives of the UEZ Program $8,500
Task3.2  Marketing, Operation, and Implementation 57,600
Task 3.3  Identification of Next Steps $2,400
Task 3.4  Development of Final Report and Public Presentation $5,000
Expenses 4,200
Total Fee 586,900
Economic & Real Estate Analysis for Sustainable Land Use Qutcormes™
NEW YORK PHILADELPHIA PITTSRURGH

wiww. 1A u',H‘l-,\.?i“;‘\':;_':,-_ is.com



R2026-22

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REFUND OF PROPERTY TAX
OVERPAYMENTS DUE TO DISABLED VETERAN EXEMPTIONS

WHEREAS, the Tax Office of the Town of Phillipsburg has certified that the following are refunds of
overpayments and,

WHEREAS,; said payments are due to Disabled Veteran Exemptions

YEAR 2025:

Block 2302 Lot2 Corine Carter $ 367.93
483 Thomas Street
Phillipsburg, NJ 08865

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Town of Phillipsburg, County of
Warren, that the foregoing payments be refunded.

CERTIFICATION

I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk of the Town of Phillipsburg, County of Warren and State of
New Jersey do hereby certify the foregoing to be true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by
Council at a meeting held on January 13, 2026.

Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk



Town Of Phillipsburg
OFFICE OF THE TAX COLLECTOR

120 Filmore Street
PHILLIPSBURG, NJ 08865

| HMML
A Rivr(t Y/ U *ﬁ Phone 908'454'5500 EXt 307
Destination - Fax 908-213-1613

January 9, 2025
Susan,

Please include the following Tax Overpayment refund for a Disabled Veteran Exemption
at the next Council Meeting.

YEAR 2025:
Block 2302 Lot2 Corine Carter $367.93
483 Thomas Street
Phillipsburg, NJ 08865
Daniele Lattig

Tax Office



RESOLUTION NO. 2026-23

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING THE PAYOUT OF ACCRUED LEAVE BENEFITS
TO ROBERT J. MERLO

WHEREAS, Robert J. Merlo has retired from the Town of Phillipsburg after 38 years of dedicated
service to the Town; and

WHEREAS, Robert J. Merlo is entitled to payout of accumulated benefit time in the amount of
$159,235.46; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Merlo has requested that said amount be paid out in two (2) equal annual
installments of $79,617.73; and

WHEREAS, the Town is agreeable to such request.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Phillipsburg,
County of Warren, State of New Jersey, that the payment of accumulated benefit time as detailed
above is hereby authorized and directed to be paid to Robert J. Merlo in the manner detailed
hereinabove.

CERTIFICATION

I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk of the Town of Phillipsburg, County of Warren, State of
New Jersey, do hereby certify the foregoing to be true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted
by the Town Council of the Town of Phillipsburg at a meeting held on January 13, 2026.

Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk

{00971933-1}



R2025-24

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL, TOWN OF PHILLIPSBURG, COUNTY
OF WARREN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $5,000.00 IN THE MATTER OF CALDWELL V. TOWN OF
PHILLIPSBURG

WHEREAS, the Town is a defendant in a denial of access complaint filed in the Superior
Court of New Jersey captioned Derrick Caldwell v. Town of Phillipsburg and bearing
Docket No.: WRN-L-357-24; and

WHEREAS, the litigation commenced pursuant to the New Jersey Civil Rights Act based
upon the revocation of the Plaintiff’s certificate of occupancy for his home on the grounds that it
was an unsafe structure and has been converted from its approved mode of use to that of an illegal
boarding house; and

WHEREAS, upon being served with the lawsuit, the Town denied the allegations set forth
in the complaint and vigorously defended against the same.

WHEREAS, the Parties have reached a settlement which will fully and finally dispose of
the litigation; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council believes it is in the best interest of the town to fully and
finally resolve all issues without need for further appeal.

NOW THEREFORE IT BE RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of
Phillipsburg, County of Warren, State of New Jersey, that payment in the amount of $5,000.00 is
hereby authorized and directed to be made to Plaintiff or to Plaintiff’s Counsel in exchange for a
full and complete dismissal of litigation commenced against the Town of Phillipsburg.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a settlement agreement as prepared by the Town’s Counsel reflecting same.

CERTIFICATION
I, Susan Turner, Acting Municipal Clerk for the Town of Phillipsburg, do hereby certify

that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution duly adopted by the Town Council at their January
13, 2026 meeting.

Susan Turner
Acting Municipal Clerk

{00971987-1}



Caldwell v, Town of Phillipsburg: Docket No.: WRN-1-357-24
Mediation Date: December 3, 2025

This term sheet sets forth the proposed settlement terms reached in mediation between Plaintiff
Derrick Caldwell and the Town of Phillipsburg. All terms are subject to approval by the
Phillipsburg governing body and contingent upon the Department of Community Affairs (DCA)
waiving approximately $10,000 in penalties issued against Mr. Caldwell. If the DCA does not
~ grant the waiver, Plaintiff may cancel the settlement and, thus, this issue must be addressed at the
outset.

Payment and Release

e The Town will pay $5,000 to Mr. Caldwell (to be held in escrow pending dismissal with
prejudice).

Penalties and Municipal Actions
The Town agrees to:
» Waive approximately $2,100 on the existing clean-up penalties.
s Pause any habitability hearings. _
»  Refrain from issuing penalties related to the noted violations while Plaintiff completes his

obligations.

DCA Penalty Waiver

» The Town will make a good-faith effort to obtain a DCA waiver of approximately
$10,000, assessed against Mr. Caldwell.

» No guarantees can be made.

» Ifthe DCA denies the waiver, Plaintiff may declare the settlement void as set forth herein
above. Plaintiff must exercise this option within 5 days from written notice from the
Town that the DCA refuses to waive the penalty.

Property at 375 Grant Street

« The Town will pause all enforcement and remedial actions related to the alleged illegal
conversion and use of the property as a rooming/boarding house.

o If Mr. Caldwell completes the required steps below, the Town will withdraw the charge,
and no corrective work related to rooming/boarding house issue will be required.

»  Mr, Caldwell must, within 30 days of governing body approval of this settlement, apply
for: (1) A Residential Zoning Permit (approx. $50) — waived; (2) A Residential Sales
Permit (approx. $125) - waived.

« Upon doing so, Mr. Caldwell shall be permitted, upon the stated conditions, to: (1) access
the property only to clean it out; (2) he may not reside at the property; (3) all work must
be done between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.; (4) the clean-out must be completed within 30
days of the permits being issued; (5) the Town may inspect the property within 15 days

{00967960-1}


Randy Piazza
@tgomez@phillipsburgnj.org Please view this document. You can also add comments.


after the clean-out to confirm it meets single-family residence standards and does not
remain a health, safety and welfare concern; (6) after the inspection, Mr. Caldwell will
list the property for sale within 15 days.

Dismissal of the Lawsuit

» Full release of all claims of any kind or any nature.
¢ After governing body approval of Settlement: Dismissal With Prejudice.

Derrick Caldswsll
Bv;%ﬁ 01/09/26

Town ofﬁll!/ipsburg

Print name:
Title:

{00967960-1}



Phillipsburg Fire Department
Administrative Offices
441 Heckman Street
Phillipsburg, New Jersey 08865

Date December 30, 2025

Robert E. Case
Name of Applicant

This serves to advise that the above named individual has applied for active
fire duty with the Phillipsburg Fire Department. This also serves as notification
that this individuai has successfully completed a criminal background check
and the required physical examination by the Municipal Doctor, as set forth
by the Town of Phillipsburg and the New Jersey State Firemen’s Association.

“ Very truly yours,

Fi

H

"X Richard A. Hay
Fire Chief



